

一時時間に、一時時間

14 44/1 4

# **ENGADINE DRAGONS**

# CRICKET CLUB

# 1988-89 YEAR BOOK

# ENGAD INE DRAGONS

بأساف بالمسافية لأحد

1

# DRAGONS CRICKET CLUB

THIRTY-SEC OND

# ANNUAL PRESENTATION NIGHT

14th April, 1989

. .

#### OFFICE BEARERS FOR 1988/89

### EXECUTIVE

PRESIDENT MEN'S SECRETARY BOYS' SECRETARY

TREASURER

Russ Waddell Alf Lemmon Jim Thornthwaite/ Ross Knowles Bob Vannan

#### MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (In addition to Executive)

VICE PRESIDENT	Ken Tever
PUBLICITY OFFICER REGISTRAR (Junior)	Bob Price
REGISTRAR (Junior)	Doug Stuve
PROPERTY OFFICER	Bill Knowles
MINUTES SECRETARY	Cheryl Morando/
	Greg Heffernan
COMMITTEE MEMBERS (2)	Ian McCrae, Adrian Vannan

## CLUB APPOINTMENTS, DELEGATES AND OFFICERS

Anzac Youth Centre Delegate Ken Tever Men's Association Delegates Boys' Association Delegates Ian McCrae Newsletter Publication

Club Recorder

프로 나는 다 나서?

Alf Lemmon, Bob Vannan Jim Thornthwaite, Cherýl Morando/Ross Knowles,

Val and Ken Tever Vi Noakes

#### LIFE MEMBERS

#### HONOUR ROLL

#### BARRY MCMANUS SNR. HARRY ROBBINS RAY NOAKES DEC 'D. COL. KEENAN MIKE FORDYCE ALF LEMMON

## REPRESENTATIVE CRICKET HONOURS 1988/89

METROPOLITAN NO. 2 GREEN SHIELD

WATSON SHIELD (1) WATSON SHIELD (2)

MOORE SHIELD (1) MOORE SHIELD (2) CAWSEY SHIELD (1) FOSTER SHIELD (1)

SUTHERLAND GRADE PLAYERS

Cameron Napper

Nathan Morando Cameron Napper

Nathan Morando

Chad Moodie Adam Pascoe Sheldon Steeles Ross Stuart

Gregory Goodman

Darren Crossley

Daniel McLauchlan

Craig Brownscombe Christopher Lake

Brett Johnson Craig Parsons Derek Spencer Trent Woodhill

OFFICE BEARERS FROM 1977 ONWARDS

TEAR	PI	RESIDENT	SEC	RETARY	TI	REASURER
1977-78	R	. NOAKES	н.	ROBB INS	R.	ENTWISTLE
1978-79	R	NOAKES	R.	LOVETT		ENTWISTLE
1979-80	R	. LOVETT	Α.	GLEESON		ENTWISTLE
1980-81	R	. LOVETT	M .	FORDYCE		ENTW ISTLE
1981 <b>-</b> 82	R	. LOVETT	Η.	ROBB INS	R.	ENTW ISTLE
1982-83	R	. LOVETT	н.	ROBB INS	Э.	RICHARDSON
198 <b>3-</b> 84	R	. LOVETT	H. R.	ROBBINS/ WOODHILL	J.	R IC HARDSON
1984-85	D	. STUVE	A. R.	LEMMON/ WOODHILL	Э.	RICHARDSON
<b>1985-8</b> 6	D	. STUVE	A. R.	LEMMON/ WOODHILL	э.	RICHARDSON
<b>1986-8</b> 7	R	. WADDELL	А. Р.	LEMMON/ CLOTHIER	ј.	RICHARDSON
1987-88	R	. WADDELL		LEMMON/ to Sept. '87 THORNTHWAIT		R ICHARDSON
1988-89	F	. WADDELL		LEMMON THORNTHWAIT KNOWLES	R. E/	VANNAN

#### PRESIDENT'S REPORT

This season saw a downturn in the numbers playing cricket, while not restricted to our club, nevertheless, impacted on this club to the extent that we fielded six teams less than the previous year.

By comparison with 1987/88 it was a disappointing year. Not one of the three senior teams made the finals, although all proved competitive and capable of beating those teams which did ultimately contest the finals. In the junior competition, the club slipped from second to fifth and unlike last year, no junior team achieved a premiership.

Perhaps it's a sign of the times, but the year was marked by lack of support and apparent disinterest. Evidence of this can be found in the absence this year of a junior double wicket competition, with no one responding to the Management Committee's overtures to stage such a day. Likewise, regrettably, the Executive has determined that the club's major award -The Sportsman of the Year trophy - will not be awarded this year. The Executive could not find a player who had given freely of his time and efforts to support the club over and beyond playing cricket. As the Award has to be earned, not given, there is no award.

The abysmal attendance at meetings, beyond the faithful few, and the obvious failure of Coaches and Managers to read the club Newsletter, all attest to a lack of enthusiasm and support.

To those who gave of their time, I express the Executive's thanks. To those who played and gave of their best, I hope the season provided its own rewards. To the band of consistent supporters, and it is only a small band, which in itself is a sad commentary, I hope that you retain your enthusiasm and come back next year. Cricket, as well as the club, needs you. As I conclude this report, I admit it is not the most cheerful nor the most positive report. Indeed, in three years of Presidencey, it is the most gloomy. However, the facts speak for themselves and I reflect the comm. ents and views of many who love cricket and have expressed concerns to me.

The answer is of course in the hands of all club members and cricket lovers. This club and all similar clubs need more than the silent majority. We need people who, putting personal interests aside, will work for the good of the club and the promotion of cricket. I hope that they still exist within our Community to-day, that they have not all faded away, and they will front up in their numbers to the AGM in support of the club.

With 32 years of demonstrated commitment to cricket, the Engadine Dragons is a well known and respected club with in the Sutherland Shire Community. I am confident, despite the current trend that the club will prosper and with <u>support</u> of <u>all</u> members next year and those after, that this season will be no more than a slight setback.

#### RUSS WADDELL

#### MEN'S SECRETARY REPORT

.

In the 1988/89 season, we had three senior sides -Al, B3 and B7. All three sides during the season performed very well on occasions. All teams came up to the last round with good chances of playing in the Finals, but blew their chances.

In all teams, there seemed to be a lack of concentration and deducation in some games.

My congratulations to the players in the three sides who have won trophies. (6) I was very pleased that all players responded to the Committee's request that all fees be paid long before the end of the season.

I would like to thank those players who helped with the raffles. The raffles were called off with four weeks to go to the end of the season through lack of assistance Next season, I hope everyone in the club will get behind the raffles, as they bring in around \$3,000.

I have been told another of our young cricketers, Kel Parsons, is trying out for Grade noxt year. If he is successful, he will be the sixth Engadine Dragons player to make it in the last five seasons.

Finally, I hope everyone associated with the Club this season will be back in the 1989/90 season. Also my thanks to Bill Ziegler for taking on the Captaincy of the B7 side.

#### ALF LEMMON Men's Secretary

#### BOYS' SECRETARY REPORT

I came into the position of Boys' Secretary this season, after Jim Thornthwaite had prepared the junior teams for the competition.

With six graded teams and many willing cricketers, it was pleasing to see the club finish fifth in the Club Championship, which shows that the boys played cricket as it should be played - a team sport.

Congratulations to all award winners and those boys who gained selection in the Representative teams. To those boys who did not win trophies, always remember, cricket is a team game where often 10 runs, one wicket or one fine catch (or piece of fielding) can make a big difference in the result of the match.

Finally, I would like to thank all Coaches, Managers for doing their jobs all season and Finally, I would find their jobs all season and i and Scorers for doing their jobs all season and i and Scorers for doing parents coming forward to help look forward to more parents coming forward to help out next season.



ROSS KNOWLES Boys' Secretary

#### TREASURER'S REPORT

Thanks to all players and everyone who helped us through another enjoyable season.

Regrettably, we end the season in a much less health financial position than we would have hoped. This due to a lack of support for our fund raising active ities and unless this alters next season, the new Executive will have to consider increasing our fees

(8)

BOB VANNAN Treasurer

#### CLUB AWARDS 1988-89

CLUB SPORTSMAN OF THE YEAR (The Ron Dudman Trophy)

Criteria: Awarded to a senior player, who in addition to playing for the club, gives freely of his time and energies in supporting the club in its activities.

**RECIPIENT:** 

NO AWARD MADE

SENIOR CLUB CHAMPION

(The Les Johnson Trophy)

Criteria: Awarded to the senior player considered to have displayed outstanding form during the season as a batsman, bowler, allrounder or wicket keeper.

#### RECIPIENT:

#### CRAIG TEVER

#### OUTSTANDING JUNIOR IN MEN'S CRICKET (A club annual trophy)

Criteria: Awarded to a junior player playing his first season in men's cricket and displaying a high level of skill, ability and potential.

#### RECIPIENT:

#### KELVIN PARSONS

**DOYS CLUB CHAMPION** 

(The Joe Weymouth Trophy)

Criteria: Awarded to a senior player in the junior association competition, who has performed meritoriously for the club, usually at a high level of skill in A or B grade, and by results has shown himself to be an outstanding prospect.

RECIPIENT:

NATHAN MORANDO

(9)

#### TOP BOYS CLUB BATSMAN (The Peter Sciller Trophy) (The Peter Sciller Trophy) Criteria: Awarded to a junior player, who by result has shown himself to be an outstand.

Criteria: Awarded to a second provide an outstanding has shown himself to be an outstanding batsman. In deciding this award, the Committee takes into consideration the grade at which the batsman has performed

#### RECIPIENT:

## NATHAN MORANDO

#### TOP BOYS CLUB BOWLER (The Peter Schiller Trophy)

Criteria: The criteria here matches that of Top Boys Club Batsman, with bowling skill substituting for batting.

#### RECIPIENT:

#### NATHAN MORANDO

- TOP BOYS CLUB JICKET KEEPER (The George Beames Memorial Trophy)
- Criteria: Similar to that of the two preceding categories.

#### RECIPIENT:

#### GREG GOODMAN

- TOP BOYS UNDER 16 BATSMAN (The Ken Johnson Trophy)
- Criteria: The Ul6 batsmon scoring the most runs in a season are considered for this award. Consideration favours batsmon playing in the A Grade competition.

#### RECIPIENT:

#### NATHAN MORANDO

RAY NOAKES MEMORIAL COACHING SCHOLARSHIP AWARD

Criteria: There are two awards made. They are designed primarily to encourage U/16 players, who in the judgment of the (10) Committee will benefit from specialised coaching. The Committee gives special consideration to second year and A grade players, but will also take into account potential, sportsmanship, behaviour, club loyalty and tenure with the club.

REC IP IENTS:	CAMERON NAPPER 16A	ADAM PASCOL 16A
---------------	-----------------------	--------------------

#### ROCKIE OF THE YEAR (The Lance Bartlett Trophy)

- Criteria: A young player who in his first year ever of cricket performs meritoriously and shows potential.
  - RECIPIENTS: MICHAEL CROFT EVAN MANNELL 12C 10C

#### WICKET KEEPER ENCOURAGEMENT AWARD (A club annual trophy)

Criteria: A young player who by his efforts shows potential as a 'keeper and is worthy of encouragement.

#### RECIPIENT:

#### BRENDAN LOFTHOUSE 12C

- THE MOST IMPROVED TEAM (The Alan Wishart Memorial Trophy)
- Criteria: Awarded to the team which on results shows improvement in the second half of the competition relative to the first half. Special consideration is given to lower graded and younger teams.

#### RECIPIENTS:

<u>16a team</u> Coach: steve morando

THE ROBERT TICKNER SPORTS ENCOURAGEMENT AWARD	SENIOR CLUB CHAMPION AWARDS - THE LES JOHNSON TROPHY
Criteria: An award for a junior player, not in receipt of any other award, who through his efforts shows keenness and potential and as such, is worthy of "sports encouragement".	1977-78B. Johnson1983-84J. Richardson1978-79J. Huyben1984-85I. Cranston1979-80S. Gorry1985-86M. Price1980-81C. Alewood1986-87A. Perritt1981-82S. Wearne1987-88D. Perritt1982-83G. Heffernan1988-89C. Tever
RECIPIENT: DARREN PRICE 120	JUNIOR CLUB CHAMPION AWARDS - THE JOE WEYMOUTH TROPHY
	JUNIUR CLOB CHAMPION AWARDS - THE JUE WETMOOTH TROPHT
	1977-78W. Wishart1983-84T. Weodhill1978-79G. Anderson1984-85C. Parsons1979-80G. Anderson1985-86C. Parsons1980-81D. Russell1986-87T. Woodhill1981-82P. Bland1987-88N. Morando1982-83J. Westlake1988-89N. Morando
	<u>CLUB SPORTSMAN OF THE YEAR AWARDS</u> - THE RON DUDMAN TROPHY
	1977-78 B. Messiter 1983-84 S. Clinch   1978-79 A. Lemmon 1984-85 R. Lovett   1979-80 G. Heffernan 1985-86 R. Waddell   1980-81 S. Messiter 1986-87 (D. Weir   1981-82 A. Vannan (A. Hitchings)   1982-83 P. Meddings 1987-88 J. Richardson   1988-89 No Award
	CUTSTANDING JUNIOR IN MEN'S CRICKET AWARD ENGADINE DRAGONS CRICKET CLUB TROPHY
	1979-80M. Price1984-85J. Westlake1980-81C. Berry1985-86T. Woodhill1981-82P. Bland1986-87R. Long1982-83G. Hickey1987-88M. Faust1963-84G. Nelson1988-89K. Parsons
	(13)

TOP BOYS CLUB BATSMAN AWARDS - THE PETER SCHILLER TROPHY   1979-80 P. Bland 1984-85 B. Thornthwaite   1980-81 R. Entwistle 1985-86 C. Parsons.   1981-82 R. Langston 1986-87 N. Morando.   1982-83 G. Phillips 1987-88 N. Morando.   1983-84 N. Morando 1988-89 N. Morando	WICKET KEEPER ENCOURAGEMENT AWARD ENGADINE DRAGONS CRICKET CLUB TROPHY 1982-83 T. Yule 1986-87 D. Stewart 1983-84 G. Goodman 1987-88 A. Preston 1984-85 M. Miller 1988-89 B. Lofthouse 1985-86 D. Hine	
<u>TOP EOYS CLUB BOWLER AWARDS</u> - THE PETER SCHILLER TROPHY 1979-80 R. Jennings 1984-85 M. Gleeson 1980-81 J. Short 1985-86 N. Morando 1981-82 J. Westlake 1986-87 N. Morando 1982-83 P. Brosnan 1987-88 N. Morando 1983-84 M. Gleeson 1988-89 N. Morando	ROOKIE OF THE YEAR AWARDS - THE LANCE BARTLETT TROPHY 1981-82 G. Jarvis 1985-86 D. Jones 1982-83 G. McGuirk 1986-87 B. Cowan 1983-84 C. Handley 1987-88 J. Zabaras 1984-85 B. Cox 1988-89 M. Croft/ E. Mannell	•
TOP UNDER 16 BATSMAN AWARDS - THE KEN JOHNSON TROPHY	THE MOST IMPROVED TEAM AWARDS - THE ALAN WISHART MEMORIAL TROPHY	
1977-78W. Wishart1983-84G. MacDonald1978-79B. Martin1984-85B. Thornthwaite1979-80S. Urquhart1985-86C. Parsons1980-81D. Russell1986-87C. Ballard	1979-8012DCoach:C. Dalley1980-8114DCoaches:I. Cranston and	
1981-82 P. Bland 1987-88 S. Steeles 1982-83 J. Westlake 1988-89 N. Morando	M. Hammond1981-8212DCoach:J. Richardson1982-8310CCoach:G. Goodman1983-8414ECoach:J. Cox1984-8514D(2)Coaches:P. Clothier	
THE DOYS CLUP JICKET KEEPER AJARDS - THE GEORGE . BEAMES MEMOATAL TROPHY 1979-80 B. Landrigan 1984-85 B. Thornthwaite	and R. Waddell 1985-86 14C Coaches: P. Clothier and	
1980-81 A. Lovett 1984-85 B. Thornthwaite   1981-82 A. Lovett 1985-86 C. Ballard   1982-83 G. Nolard 1986-87 G. Goodman	R. Waddell 1986-87 12D Coach: G. Phillips 1987-88 14E Coach: M. Coad	

(14?

(15)

OUTSTANDING PERFORMANCES - BOYS JUNIOR CRICKET BOWLING Wickets in Excess of 20 BATTING Runs in Excess of 200 BOWLER TEAM WICKETS RUNS Same - and the Nathan Morando 16A 30 383 Darren Crossley 22 14A 246 . . -----11.1 HAT TRICKS . ..... Nil

### 7 WICKETS OR MORE IN AN INNINGS

Robin Dodd	В <b>7</b>	<b>7</b> for 18	v Gwawley Old Boys
Neil Lovelock	Al	<b>7</b> for 50	v. Sutherland U.S. Club

and the second second

AVERAGE

12.76

11.18

(17)

BATSMAN	TEAM	AGGREGATE	AVERAGE	SCORE 50 +
Nathan Morando	16A	354	39.33	110 71 59 52
Gregory Goodman	14A	266	53.20	66x

#### CENTURIES

Juniors:	Nathan Morando	16A llO v Sylvania
Seniors:	Craig Tever	B3 110 n.o. v Sutherland U.S.

Club

112 v Heathcote

(16)

#### LEADING INDIVIDUAL (JUNIOR) CATCHING PERFORMANCES

10 Catches		8 Catches	
Jason Crimlisk	16A	Adam Pascoe Gregory Uebel	16A 12C
7 Catches		<u>6 Catches</u>	
Gregory Goodman Ian Taunton Trent Baldock Evan Mannell	14A 14C 12A 10C	Brendan Lofthouse Peter Burns	12C 12C

#### TEAM CATCHING PERFORMANCES

Team	No. of Catches
16A	47
12C	41
12A	 39
14C	37
14A	28
100	12

-

JUNIOR DOUBLE WICKET COMPETITION

Not held due to lack of support

## BOYS TEAM RESULTS FOR THE 1988/89 SEASON

in mention of the second

#### CLUB CHAMPIONSHIP (15 Clubs)

lst	Caringbah Sports		115.18
2nd	Miranda Magpies	a (	94.00
3rd	Illawong	* e - *	91.40
4th	St. John Bosco		79.86
5th	Engadine Dragons		79.43
6th	St. Patricks		76.60

			INDIVIDUAL	TEAM	PLACI	NGS	
16A	••	4th				5	
14A	••	3rd	14C	••	5 <b>th</b>		
12A	••	4th	12C	••	4th		
10C	۰.	5th					

(18)

MEN'S	PREMIERSHIP WIN	NING TEAMS SINC	E THE FO	RMATION	BOYS	PREMIERSHIP	WINNING TEAMS SINC	E THE FORMATION
	JF-A-SENIOR-COMP	DETITION IN OUR	CLOB IN				E CRICKET CLUB IN T	
	196	57-68 SEASON	10000 I				1957-58 SEASON	
	1967-68		A2			1957 <b>-</b> 64		Nil
	1968-69		Al			1965-66		148
	1969-70		Al, B3			1966-67		Nil
	1970-71		Al			1967-68		14B
a 4	1971-72		Nil			1968-69		108
	1972-73		B4			1969-70	5. · ·	12A
	197 <b>3-</b> 74		Al, B3			1970-71		14D, 12A, 10B
	1974-75		Nil			<b>1971-7</b> 2		16B, 14A
	1975-76		Nil			1972-73		10C, 10D
	1976-77		A 3			1973-74		12A, 12E, 10A,
	1977-78		Al, B4					loc
	1978-79		Al, B3,	C2		1974-75		120
	1979-80		B4, C2			1975-76		14B, 14D, 12A,
	1980-81		Nil			1976-77	rš X	10D 16C, 14B, 14C,
	1981-82		Al, B2			1910 11		100, 146, 140, 10A
	1982-83		B4, B6			1977-78		16A, 10C
	1983-84		Nil			1978-79		16A, 12A, 10A
	1984-85		Al, 82			1979-80		Nil
	1985-86		Bl, B6			1980-81		148, 14D, 12A
	1986-87		Nil			1981 <b>-</b> 82		168(1), 148, 10D
	1987-88		Nil			1982-83		12D
	1980-89		Nil			1983-84		Nil
						1984-85		Nil
(20)				· · · · · ·		1985-86		1 OD
a second s						1986-87		Nil
				,		1987-88		14A, 14C
						1988-89	En la c	Nil

C. Parter Part

#### BOYS ! TEAM REPORTS

#### 16A TEAM REPORT

AWARD W	INNERS -	ALL ROUNDER: BATTING:	NATHAN MORANDO
		7	PAUL CAMERON CHAD MOODIE
			JASON CRIMLISK ROSS STUART
			HODD DIDARI

On paper, this side looked to be a well-balanced one and Peter and I were anticipating a good season ahead, but unfortunately, the best laid plans of Mice and Men do not always go according to plan.

We lost the first 4 games and had a no-result against Sylvania, because of the Shire engineers and helicopters that were using Heathcote Oval.

Things looked a bit uphill from there on in, but the boys set themselves a goal to try and win the remaining matches and they almost pulled it off. They were looking good after beating the eventual premiers, Caringbah Sports quite convincingly, but our stumbling block was Gymea, who was beaten by only one run by Caringbah Sports.

NATHAN MORANDO (Captain): Nathan was one of our opening bowlers and took 30 wickets. He was also the major run scorer (354 runs). His contribution to the team was enormous and he still has one more year in Boys Cricket. Nathan was in the Watson I team and also played Green Shield for Sutherland and we wish him luck in his upcoming U/16 side touring England.

SHELDON STEELES (Vice Captain): Sheldon was one of our opening bats. Although not having the season he hoped for, he achieved his goal of playing Representative Cricket for Sutherland in the Watson II side and taking a couple of wickets in one game. Well don Sheldon.

#### (23)

DIAN		OF	THE	ROUNU	AWARDS
PLAY	ER	UI	TIL	1100110	nonnoo

#### 1988/89

Round 1	Craig Brownscombe.	12A
2	Michael Cameron	12C
3	Darren Price	12C
4	Christopher Lake	12A
5	Gregory Goodman	14A
6	Evan Mannell	100
7	Nathan Morando	16A
8	Neil Harris	14A
9	Andrew Lawrence	12A
10	Ross Stuart	<b>1</b> 6A

(22)

ROSS STUART: Ross was another of our opening bats and ROSS STUART: He was a pleasure to have in the also a spin dowige. He werything both at training and at the game. He was well rewarded with his selection in the Watson II side.

ADAM PASCOE: Adam is what you would call a true All-Rounder. He can bat, bowl, wicket keep and is an excellent fielder. He too was rewarded for his efforts in being selected for the Watson II side. Adam has another vear in U/16 and it should be a beauty.

CAMERON NAPPER: Cameron's true ability was not shown throughout the season. Unfortunately, he had a lean year with both bat and ball. However, one department of Cam's come where he did excel was fielding. Our opposition soon realised that if the ball went anywhere near him, they had to be very careful. We would also like to congratulate him on his selection in the Combined Green Shield side.

CHAD MOOSIE: Chad was another of our opening bowlers who performed very creditably right throughout the season. Chad wielded the willow deftly at times, getting us out of a bit of trouble towards the end of a few innings. Chad was also selected in the Watson II side and he is eligible to play U/16 next year, where a big year is anticipated from him.

JASON CRIMLISK: Although Jason, by his own standards, had a lean year with the bat, his bowling was on the ball and he took 15 wickets, which made him the second highest wicket taker. Jason too, excelled in the field, taking a huge 10 catches. Jason will play U/16 next year and can look forward to a top year.

PAUL CAMERON: Paul, the quietest member of our team ended up being our third highest run scorer. If he keeps practising his "Offies" throughout the off season, I'm sure he will pick up some wickets in the U/16 next year.

JIM ZABARAS: Jim came into "A" grade after a very (24)

successful season with the 14C's. Although Jim found it a bit harder this year, I think with a year of "A" a bit hered him, he will be a valuable member of next season's 16A's.

DAVID STEWART: David was another boy who came into the DAVID Steam the 14C's. After starting the season in preat style, David hit a bad patch and had trouble for the rest of the season. With a little more deducation and determination, he should have a better season next vear.

GREG KNOWLES: Unfortunately, Greg was unavailable for three of the ten games, which left him short of match practice. I think he also found things a little tough this year, but he too is eligible to play U/16's next year and I'm sure things will improve for him.

SIMON MULLIGAN: Simon joined the team late after a boy decided he didn't want to play "A" grade and went to another club. We all would like to thank Simon for heloing us out. Simon kept his best cricket for his last game in boys. hitting a swashbuckling 29 not out.

PETER CRIMLISK (Manager): Peter was always on hand to help the team out in any way he could. This was not only appreciated by me. but by all of the boys in the 16A's.

To Bob Steeles, who did the majority of the scoring and Pat and Fay who were always willing to give Bob a break, a big thank you for what is usually a thankless job.

Lastly, I would like to wish all the boys who have played their last game in Boys' cricket, a happy and successful cricketing future wherever it may take them.

#### STEVE MORANDO

(25)

14A TEAM REPORT

		ALL ROUNDER:	GREG GOODMAN
AWARD WINNERS	-	BATTING:	NEIL HARRIS
Autric		BOWLING:	DARREN CROSSLE
		FIELDING:	MARK MCMANUS
		COACH'S:	SYD BROOKSBY

This season was quite successful. We finished with four wins, four losses and two draws. However, in all games we were competitive and with one or two breaks, could have finished higher in the competition.

All of the boys contributed to our results and at times the team showed truly good form. The spirit was always positive and every boy was a credit to the club, both on and off the field.

Congratulations boys on a successful season and special thanks to Bruce Harris for his tremendous support.

BRETT ADAMS: Brett has the potential to be a very good all-rounder. This year he contributed with both the bat and the ball. His bowling improved with each game and when he get his "mind in gear", he will make consistently high scores. Brett was instrumental in a number of our wins.

ANDREW BRETT: The season was too short for Andrew. In the latter part of the season, Andrew was developing into a potential match winning spin bowler. Andrew also learnt not to go "walk about" whilst batting. However, his hard hitting and bowling fitted well into the team's efforts.

SYD BROOKSBY: This was Syd's first year in an "A" grade team. While he found the early gomes a struggle, Syd has been the outstanding improver in the team. He contributed with his bowling and batting, while his fielding was of high standard. DARREN CROSSLEY: Darren was the loading strike bowler for the team. He performed this task with enthusiasm and improved continuously through the season. He backed up with some match winning batting and fielding performances. This was a very successful season for Darren, who always maintains a positive outlook to his cricket.

<u>GREG GOODMAN</u>: Greg was the wicketkeeper, opening batsman and captain. He carried these responsibilities very well. He showed great patience and enthusiasm, as well as an improvement in his own skills during the very difficult season. Congratulations Greg on a most successful season.

NEIL HARRIS: Neil has a bright future as an all round cricketer. He batted well, bowled long sessions and fielded with great skill. Neil was also the vice captain and his help was invaluable to the captain and the whole team's performance.

DEAN JONES: Dean is the youngest member of the team and will play 14's next year. He had a good season improving his batting and bowling to the point where next season he will be a mainstay of any team. Dean made some outstanding contributions to the team's performance. He always maintained a positive outlook and remained cool under pressure.

MARK McMANUS: Mark is a fine, thoughtful cricketer. He was a mainstay of the team with bat, ball and in the field. He has a tremendous attitude towards the game and his team mates and remains cool at all times. Mark is a fine example which others could do well to follow, in his concentration and dedication to cricket.

BRAD MEADES: Brad opened the batting and continuously showed great courage throughout the season. He exhibited tremendous batting technique and developed as a potential off-spin bowler. A good season for Brad, not just as a cricketer, but he learnt a great deal about himself. Well done Brad.

(26)

MATHEW MILLER: Mathew has tremendous basic cricket tech. niques. Both his batting and his bowling benefit his learning to "use his back". On a number of occasions his tenaciousness was invaluable to our batting totals. He has a good understanding of where his stumps are and knows what to play and what to leave.

JAMES THORNTHWAITE: James opened the bowling for us and was without doubt one of the fastest in the competition. His ability to hit the ball hard also contributed to our performances and on more than one occasion, his big hands halped our fielding by taking a number of catches.

<u>JASON TINDALL</u>: Jeson missed half the season due to a skateboard accident but once he came back, his cheerfulness and willingness to learn was a great positive influence on the team. He happily did whatever was asked and when given the opportunity performed with credit with the bat and the ball.

#### JEFF GOODMAN

#### 14C TEAM REPORT

AWARD	WINNERS	-	ALL ROUNDER:	BEAU KNOWLES
			BATTING:	MATHEW ROGERSON
			BOWLING:	JOSHUA CRUDEN
			FIELDING:	IAN TAUNTON
ă.			COACH'S:	GLENN EAGLES

Although not winning as many games as most boys would have liked, the team was competitive in most matches.

Our bowling and fielding were equal to the task, but unfortunately our batting let us down on a number of occasions.

I would like to thank Denise Pearson for her help and Karen Good for scoring for the season. (28) IAN TAUNTON: Ian was our Captain this season and showed that with more experience, he will have a lot to offer the club in this position. Ian's strength is his bowling, which with more hard work and maturity, should continue to show improvement. He is also a very good fieldsman and a capable batsman.

JOSHUA CRUDEN: Although Joshua, I am sure, would have liked to have done better with the bat, it was his bowling where he enjoyed success. Twice he narrowly missed hat tricks and returned the season's best figures of 5-12.

MATHEW ROGERSON: Mathew had a fine season with the bat and it was very noticeable as the season progressed how his defence and stroke play improved. I am sure that if he applies the same attitude to his fielding as to his batting, he would be a handy player in any team.

MARK PEARSON: As the season progressed, Mark started to show what he is capable of as a middle order batsman. When bowling his medium pace deliveries, the opposition always found difficulty scoring runs off him. Mark also possesses a very accurate throwing arm, which contributed to a number of run-outs during the season.

<u>GLENN EAGLES</u>: This season, Glenn's growing confidence in his own bowling ability showed as the season progressed. If he continues to pitch the ball up, there is no reason why next season should not bring him more success. Glenn hits the ball very hord and if he improves his defence, he will score many more runs.

BEAU KNOWLES: Beau was one of our leading run scorers for the season, which was due to his defence and concentration whilst at the crease. He was also our wicket keeper for most matches, keeping sundries to a minimum and featuring in some fine team dismissals.

NICHOLAS CHEESLEY: Nicholas was our opening batsman, and although he had his "ups and downs", which go with this job, he always maintained a fine sporting attitude. He also showed a lot of potential with his left arm spin bowling, and as the season progressed, his fielding showed considerable improvement.

BRADLEY GLENNAN: Whether batting, bowling or fielding in a match or at practice, Bradley was always super-keen to improve his game. Although not doing as well as he would have liked, batting-wise I am sure he will see this reverse next season. Bradley was one of our main wicket takers for the season, either with his medium pace or his spinners, and with another season in the 14's, I'm sure he will be rewarded.

ANDREW PRESTON: Andrew loves his cricket and showed this by riding from Heathcote each Thursday for practice, On match days, he always gave 100% and deserved more success. His bowling improved as the season progressed and his ground fielding was excellent.

CAIN GOOD: Cain has the ability to be a useful All-Rounder. On two or three occasions, he played some attacking innings which had the opposition bowlers worried. He is also a bowler with potential and fields well in any position.

DAVIN SHIPTON: Davin still has another year in the 14's and with this year's experience, the 89-90 season should be rewarding for him. During the season, he played two fine innings, and when called on to bowl, was always very economical.

ANTHONY ELLIS: Anthony was one of the opening batsmen for most of the season, and showed a great deal of concentration when he was at the wicket. He is also a very fine fieldsman, close to the wicket, bringing off many good

MARK VAUGHAN: Mark was one of our opening bowlers for the majority of the season. He always bowled well without the

(30.)

rewards he deserved. If all the boys had the ability to run between the wickets as Mark does, it would make that particular part of coaching a very easy task. Mark is also a fine fine fieldsman.

ROSS KNOWLES

# 12A TEAM REPORT

AWARD WINNERS	-	ALL ROUNDER: BATTING: BOWLING: FIELDING: COACH'S:	DANIEL M¢LAUCHLAN ANDREW LAWRENCE CRAIG BROWNSCOMBE CHRIS LAKE TRENT STEWART
---------------	---	---	--

CHRIS LAKE: Chris had a very good year with bat and ball. His fielding improved and by the end of the season, was one of our best fieldsmen. Chris could have played in the Under 10 team, so watch out for him next season.

ANDREW LAJRENCE: Andrew was our most consistent batsman and also scored the most runs. His fielding was very good and he took some fine outfield catches.

BRIAN SOMERVILLE: Brian is a very fine left arm medium pace bowler. He bowled a very good line and length and was rewarded with some very good bowling figures.

TROY ADAMS: Troy decided to have a season behind the stumps. He had some very good games taking some excellont catches. Wicket keeping is a very important position you have to concentrate on every ball. Well done Troy.

SCOTT THOMPSON: Scott only played in a few games to help us out, but he got on with all the players and tried very hard in the field.

<u>TRENT STEWART</u>: Trent is a very capable all round cricketer. His batting improved with every game. He could also be a very good off-spin bowler. MATHEW TONLIN: Mathew tried hard every week. Capable of scoring more runs and is a very good fieldsman.

CRAIG BROWNSCOMBE: Craig is another player who could have played in the Under 10 team. He had some very fine bowling performances and is capable of scoring more runs. Big year 1989/90 season.

DARREN HANDS: Darren did not have the best of luck taking wickets, but opening the bowling he bowled very well and very accurately. He is capable of scoring many more runs.

DARREN McCREA: Darren has a lot of potential with the bat and ball and should have a big year in 1989/90 season. Must concentrate more.

BRYAN COWAN: Bryan has the ability to score many more runs, but must concentrate and not try to hit every ball for four. He also is a capable medium pace bowler.

TRENT BALDOCK: Trent has the ability to score many more runs. He must take his time to build an innings, not try to hit every ball so hard. He is also a very good fieldsman.

DANIEL McLAUCHLAN: Daniel is a very good all round cricketer, capable of scoring mony more runs and taking more wickets. He must take his time and concentrate more, especially with his bowling.

We had a very good season. The 12A competition was very tough. Caringbah Sports won the competitio, we came 4th. Caringbah Sports had 8 representative players in the Cawsey Shield and our Daniel McLauchlan also made the Cawsey side. Chris Lake and Craig Brownscombe were both selected for the Foster Shield team. Well done boys.

Mony thanks must go to Angela Somerville for scoring all

This is a very important job. Also thanks to Fred year. our Manager, for helping out with umpiring. I cannot lave out our supporters led by Graham Lawrence and Petor Baldock. Many thanks to all.

RAY HANDS

12C TEAM REPORT

-

AWARD WINNERS

ALL ROUNDER: N BATTING: F BOWLING: E FIELDING: E COACH'S: M

MICHAEL CAMERON PETER BURNS BEN TAYLOR BRENDAN LOFTHOUSE MICHAEL CROFT

A good season with 4 wins, 3 losses and 3 draws to finish 4th in the competition on 31 points. All the boys pulled their weight and combined well to form a wellrounded team. They trained hard, played hard and were a pleasure to have on the cricket field, with their behaviour being first class.

Team profile as follows:

MICHAEL CAMERON: Michael had a very good season. Always handy with the bat and ball and safe hands in the field. Personal tally 104 runs, 13 wickets and 2 catches.

MICHAEL CROFT: Being his first year in cricket, Michael had an excellent year, picked up runs, wickets and catches and always gave 100%. Personal tally 63 runs, 10 wickets and 4 catches.

DARREN PRICE: A great year from Darren. With a top score of 70 he had some very good digs, always dependable to take a wicket and no batsman was safe if a catch came anywhere near him. Personal tally 92 runs, 13 wickets and 6 catches.

5 ....

(32)

STEPHEN MILLER: A good effort from Stephen after a season's break from cricket. Never put it together with the bat but showed that when he hit the ball, they stayed hit. His bowling improved all season. Personal tally 15 runs, 4 wickets and 1 catch.

BRENDAN LOFTHOUSE: Ever reliable wicket keeper, Brendan had a fine season. He put up some good scores with the bat, took some great catches behind the stumps and waited till the last game to finally get a stumping. Personal tally 61 runs, 6 catches.

KEIRON BURNIE: Another first year boy, Keiron improved with each game. At the start of the season, was lucky to get bat to ball and finished the season with a fighting 12 runs. Good change bowler who picked up some wickets and always gave his best. Personal tally 18 runs and 4 wickets.

PETER BURNS: The quiet man of the team, but did his talking with the ball. A fine leg spin bowler who will take plenty of wickets in the future. Always safe with the bat and very good hands. Personal tally 74 runs, 7 wickets and 6 catches.

BEN TAYLOR: Our opening bowler and a bowler who puts fear into the batsmen. Ben has one of the finest bowling actions you could ask for. Plays very straight with the bet and was an important part of many partnerships. Personal tally 38 runs, 14 wickets.

<u>CRAIG RAGGETT</u>: Top year from Craig, always tried his best. Took some good wickets with his offspin bowling. Never showed his full ability with the bat, but showed he can do it when he concentrates. Always safe hands in the field. Personal tally 27 runs, 8 wickets and 1 catch.

GREG UEBEL: Very strong year from Greg. Showed great determination with the bat and always bowled with fire. Good

safe hands and can club the ball when needed, as he showed in the last game to turn it around to a safe win. Personal tally 47 runs, 6 wickets and 8 catches.

<u>JOSHUA LACKEY</u>: Our quicky come leggy, Joshua started off as our big fast bowler, hurt his leg and came back after Christmas as a leg spinner - both of which he did well. Strong with bat and really gave them a whack when he wanted to. Always gave 100%. Personal tally 33 runs, 2 wickets and 6 catches.

GLEN GOODMAN: Another player who had a fine year, always gave his best and was a real team player. Safe with the bat and always held the batting order together. Took some important wickets when they were needed and was a fine 2nd slip. Personal tally 82 runs, 10 wickets and 5 catches.

BRAD MITCHELL: Another first timer who started to show promise when he unfortunately had to leave for the last 3 games. Came back after Christmas bowling at 100 m.p.h. and could have had a top season. Personal tally 6 runs, 2 wickets.

In summary, I would like to thank all the parents who turned up every week to lend their support. To Judy Lofthouse for her untiring dedication to scoring and her help throughout the season. To John Uebel, the best manager a coach could ask for, his help and effort is greatly appreciated. Thank you to all the boys who made the team such a happy one.

#### KEN MILLER

#### 10C TEAM REPORT

Having nine players who have not played before, has given me a great challenge to teach them the skills they need for playing in a team sport where every player is part of the team to enjoy themselves. One item of their game is their keenness at training and when they play the game. All they need is to practice more on their fielding and catching.

Also, I would like to thank our Manager, Alan Slack, and Scorers Mrs. J. Ring and Mrs. M. Carlisle for the wonderful job they have done all season.

I would especially like to thank all the parents for the time they put in bringing the boys to training and to the game. Without them, it would be hard for the coach to function.

NATHAN BAGGLER: With Nathan's second year in cricket, his application and enthusiasm has again resulted in his perform. ance and all round improvement, particularly in batting. Nathan's bowling has also shone during the year.

MATHEW DAGGLER: As with his brother, Mathew has shown continued improvement and enthusiasm, with a consistent batting average and fielding performance during the year. With his concentration on the game, he will continue to achieve more as a valued team member.

JAMES RING: Being James first year, it was a real challenge for him to develop his skills in an overall understanding of the sport. With his keenness to learn, he will build confidence for the future, particularly in fielding.

EVAN MANNELL: Evan appears a natural with his all round cricketing skills. For his first year with the club, he has achieved excellent figures. His technique in batting and placement of shots were quite strong. His bowling success was a result of continued accuracy and concentration, in addition to his application in the field. Evan will no doubt go well next year.

KRISTOFER SCHOFIELD: Kristofer's all round efforts contributed to his performances with both bat and ball. His determination as a team player contributed to our improvement during the year. With a little more concentration and confidence in his skills, he will achieve further success.

PAUL SUMMERS: Paul has shown good skills in the field and with the ball, with a good overall performance in his first year. Given more confidence in his abilities with line and length in bowling and continued application with the bat, he will go well next year.

STUART SLACK: During Stuart's first year, he has shown his keenness to achieve in all round cricket skills. Although he has confidence in his abilities, as in batting technique and encouragement to his fellow players on the field, more work will improve his performance. During theyear, Stuart took over the wicket keeping role from Troy Glennan following his injury. Each week he continued to show his skills in an area. that should be pursued for next year.

CHRISTOPHER HAIGH: Christopher tried all year. This is his first year in cricket and as his performances improve, he will gain confidence in his ability with both bat and ball. Took wickets early in the season and has a sound base for improvement next year.

TROY GLENNAN: Troy's season was cut short by an unfortunate accident in average cricket. However, his keenness shone in his wicket keeping performance. We all look forward to a return from Troy next year.

STEPHEN CARLISLE: Stephen's all round application this year is evident by his bowling success, his keenness and enthusiasm in the field. In addition, his improved batting ability contributed to a fine team effort.

DARREN HOCKEY: Given last year's performance, Darren has developed into a fine all rounder, with strong batting skills. His involvement as a team player has shown in our games this year and this success will continue to come his way in future years. ANDREW RICHARDS: Andrew's achievements in his first year were based on his own application and confidence. Although he tried hard all year, he will show improvement with continued dedication.

NATHAN GRIFFIN: Nathan's strengths lie in his ability in the field and his bowling. His contribution during the year was very sound. Given continued application, he will develop into a fine team player.

CECIL LACROSSE

MEN'S CRICKET

(38)

..

SENIOR TEAM REPORTS

# SENIOR CLUB TEAM AWARDS AND PERFORMANCES

TEAM	ALL ROUNDER	BATTING	BOWLING
Al		Greg Heffernan 349 runs @ 38.77	Glen Hickey 30 wickets @ 10.73
8 <b>3</b>		Craig Tever 411 runs @ 41.10	Mark Curness 30 wickets @ 8.33
- 6 <b>7</b>	Robin Dodd 227 runs @ 18.91, and 58 wickets @ 8.98	231 runs	Robin Dodd 58 wickets @ 8.98

AL TEAM REPORT

At the beginning of the season, our team was given no chance of performing well, With five new players to the grade, these thoughts seemed reasonable. However, the grade, new members of the team fitting in well and conwith the new members, we were eventually unlucky not tributing to our efforts, we were eventually unlucky not to make the final.

The season started very slowly and after three rounds, we had registered only one win. The team then started to realise that they may have been as good as the other teams. After turning the corner in second last position, we finished in third position, needing just 118 runs in the last game to make the final. Unfortunately, we saved our worst till last and were dismissed for 83 runs.

A welcome should be made to the new guys in the team : Adrian Vannan, David Perritt, John Ridley, Keith Hughes and Mick Wills. Hopefully, if we can keep the same team for next year, we will go at least one better and maybe meet Loftus in the final.

Would our team look forward to that meeting ?

#### GREG HEFFERNAN

(41)

#### B3 TEAM REPORT

The team started the season slowly losing the first two games, but picked up to finish third, at one stage challenging for the finals.

(40)

· .

Some good performances and leading the way was <u>CRAIG TEVER</u> with two centuries, a total of 411 runs, av. 41.10 to <u>to</u> Batting Award. <u>MARK CURNESS</u> has taken the Bowling Award with 30 wickets av. 8.33, which was a fine perform.

AARON PERRITT, an excellent performance scoring 246 runs and taking 22 wickets. Other good performances came from KEL PARSONS, scoring 328 runs in his first season in men's cricket, COLIN BERRY solid as a rock in the opening position, BRAD STUVE at first wicket made a number of

PETER CHUDLEIGH, our leg spinner, super keen is developing a good all round game. <u>GARY BENSON</u>, our opening bowler bowled without much luck, <u>DARREN PARKES</u> saved us on a number of occasions batting and bowling, <u>MARCUS</u> <u>LOXLEY</u> did not have the best of seasons with the bat but came good towards the season's end. <u>JOHN RICHARDSON</u> bowled well all season, av. 15.75, a good performance, <u>BOB WOODHILL</u> bowled without luck, definite improvement in the batting department.

A final thanks to all the team for their excellent attitude and will to win, which saw us come through a number of times when in a poor position.

#### DOUG STUVE

#### **B7 TEAM REPORT**

In my first year as Captain, I was lucky enough to have two experienced campaigners available, on whom I could call for advice. My thanks to Alf Lemmon and Russ Waddell for their advice and support throughout the season.

In a season full of ups and downs, we managed to win 7 games and lose 5.

Some of the Ups were : In the second round, our win over st. Pats. who were leading the competition at the time.

A hard fought win over Heathcote Services, when we were chasing 106 runs for a win and slumped to be 7-39, before recovering to be 7-110.

On the Down side was the way our batting failed to live up to expectations on a number of occasions. It let us down badly in the two games we lost in the second round.

However, it was pleasing to see the way the side batted in the last game, when we amassed our highest score for the season. I feel the boys were starting to come to grips with what is required in men's cricket. Next season they should all perform more consistently.

Our bowlers performed the task asked of them and placed us in the position from which we could have won every game this year. Special mention should be made of Rob Dodd's effort. He was the mainstay of our bowling this season and finished with 58 wickets at an average of 8.98, an excellent performance.

Thanks to our small, but dedicated team of supporters and also to our scorer and statistician, Bob Vannan, for an excellent job.

Our team was : Bob Bell, Brendan Cox, Rob Dodd, Andrew Geldart, Alf Lemmon, Jason Mead, Sean Stewart, Russell Taunton, Mark Vannan, Phil Vannan, Russ Waddell, Paul Waddell, Brad Wardrobe, Cameron Rossiter, Bill Ziegler.

. H. B. D. C.

#### BILL ZIEGLER

(42)